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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

l 

TIARA SCOTLAND and JANAYA 
OUTERBRIDGE, individually, and on behalf 
of others similarly situated, 

Plaintiffs, 
vs. 

SH RESTAURANT, INC., d/b/a 
"CEDAR PARK CAFE," 

Defendant. 

Case No. 

FILED 
DEC 11 2017 

KATE BARKMAN, Cler.k 
By Dep. Clerk 

COLLECTIVE ACTION COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiffs TIARA SCOTLAND and JANA YA OUTERBRIDGE, (hereinafter referred 

to as "Plaintiffs"), individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, by and through their 

attorneys, JTB LAW GROUP, LLC, hereby bring this Collective Action Complaint against 

Defendant, SH RESTAURANT, INC., dlb/a "CEDAR PARK CAFE," (hereinafter referred to 

as "Defendant"), and states as follows: 

INTRODUCTION 

I. Plaintiffs bring this action to recover monetary damages, liquidated damages, and 

reasonable attorneys' fees and costs as a result of Defendant's willful violation of the Fair Labor 

Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §201 et seq. ("FLSA") and the Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act 

("PMWA"), 43 P.S. § 333.101, et seq. 

2. Defendant SH Restaurant, Inc., d/b/a "Cedar Park Cafe" located at 4914 

Baltimore A venue, Philadelphia PA, employed tipped servers, including Plaintiffs, to greet 

customers, take food orders, bring food and drinks to the tables, and other normal wait staff 

duties. 
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3. Defendant rarely, if ever, paid any wages to their servers and instead relied on 

customers' discretionary tips to compensate Plaintiffs. 

4. An employer seeking to rely on tips to supplement an employee's wages must 

comply with 29 U.S.C. § 203(m), which provides that an employer is permitted to take a credit 

for tips up to $5.12 per hour amount as long as (1) notice is made, (2) the tip credit claimed by 

the employer cannot exceed the amount of tips actually received by the tipped employee and (3) 

all tips received by such employee have been retained by the employee. 

5. Defendant violated the FLSA, by rarely, if ever, paying any wages and instead 

required that customers' discretionary tips be the sole source of Servers' wages. 

6. Defendant failed to make any good faith attempt to notify Plaintiffs of the 

provisions of 29 U.S.C. § 203(m). 

7. An employer who fails to provide the required information to their employees 

informing them of the tip credit provision cannot use ,the tip credit and therefore must pay the 

tipped employee at least $7.25 per hour in wages and allow the tipped employee to keep all tips 

received. 

8. Moreover, an employer who fails to pay any wage to a tipped employee is 

required to pay at least $7.25 per hour in wages for each hour worked. See Fact Sheet #15. 

9. Because Defendant failed to comply with 29 U.S.C. § 203(m), its compensation 

scheme denied Plaintiffs the minimum wage they were entitled to under 29 U.S.C. § 206. 

10. Furthennore, Plaintiffs frequently worked over forty (40) hours per week, without 

any additional overtime pay for those hours in violation of the FLSA's overtime provisions. 29 

u.s.c. § 207. 

11. The PMW A is interpreted the same as the federal mandated minimum wage and 

2 
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overtime compensation standard for employees in Pennsylvania pursuant to 43 Pa. Stat. Ann. § 

333.104, but sets a higher tipped wage at $2.83. 

12. In addition to their FLSA and PMW A claims, Plaintiffs also bring this collective 

action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) on behalf of all Tipped Employees employed by Defendant 

as hourly tipped servers at Cedar Park Cafe at any time within the period of the three (3) years 

prior to the commencement of this action through the date of judgment. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

13. This Court has subject-matter jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' FLSA claims pursuant 

to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because Plaintiffs' claims raise a federal question under 29 U.S.C. § 201, et 

seq. 

14. The court has supplemental jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' state law claims pursuant 

to 28 U.S.C. § 1367 because those claims derive from a common nucleus of operative facts. 

15. The Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because company 1s 

incorporated and has a principal place of business in Pennsylvania. 

16. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2) and (3) because 

Defendant employed Plaintiffs in this district and because a substantial portion of the events that 

give rise to the Plaintiffs' claims occurred in this district. 

PARTIES 

Plaintiff - Tiara Scotland 

17. Plaintiff Tiara Scotland is a resident of Delaware County, Pennsylvania, and 

signed a consent form to join this lawsuit, which is attached as Exhibit A. 

18. Defendant employed Plaintiff Scotland as a Tipped Server from approximately 

January 2015 to April 2017. 

3 
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19. Plaintiff Scotland worked a schedule of eight hour shifts on Monday, Wednesday 

and Friday, each lasting from approximately 7:00 AM until 3:00 PM and a schedule of nine hour 

shifts on Saturday and Sunday, each lasting from approximately 7:00 AM until 4:00 PM. 

20. Plaintiff Scotland's job duties as a Tipped Server included greeting and seating 

customers, taking and placing customers' food orders, serving food and beverages to customers, 

bussing tables, wiping down counters, brewing coffee, bagging delivery orders and processing 

customer payments. 

Plaintiff - Janaya Outerbridge 

21. Plaintiff Outerbridge is a resident of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and signed a 

consent form to join this lawsuit, which is attached as Exhibit B. 

22. Defendant employed Plaintiff Outerbridge as a Tipped Server from approximately 

January 2015 to December 2016. 

23. Plaintiff Outerbridge worked a schedule of eight hour shifts on Tuesday, 

Wednesday and Thursday, each lasting from approximately 7:00 AM until 3:00 PM and a 

schedule of nine hour shifts on Saturday and Sunday, each lasting from approximately 7:00 AM 

until 4:00 PM. 

24. Plaintiff Outerbridge's job duties as a Tipped Server included greeting and seating 

customers, taking and placing customers' food orders, serving food and beverages to customers, 

bussing tables, wiping down counters, cleaning bathrooms, stocking amenities, bagging delivery 

orders and processing customer payments. 

Defendant 

25. Defendant SH Restaurant, Inc., does business as "Cedar Park Cafe." 

26. Defendant SH Restaurant, Inc., d/b/a "Cedar Park Cafe," is a diner that serves 

4 
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breakfast, lunch, and brunch located at 4914 Baltimore Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19143. 

27. Defendant is in the service industry and employs a staff of tipped employees to 

serve customers food and drinks from approximately 7:00 AM until 3:00 PM, Monday- Sunday. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

28. Defendant was an employer under 29 U.S.C. § 203(d) of the FLSA, subject to the 

provisions of29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq. 

29. Plaintiff Tiara Scotland was an "employee" of Defendant within the meaning of 

29 U.S.C. § 203(e)(l) of the FLSA. 

30. Plaintiff Janaya Outerbridge was an "employee" of Defendant within the meaning 

of 29 U.S.C. § 203(e)(l) of the FLSA. 

31. Defendant was and continues to be "an enterprise engaged in commerce" within 

the meaning of the FLSA. 

32. Defendant's annual sales exceed $500,000. 

33. Defendant had two (2) or more employees handling, selling, or otherwise working 

on goods or materials that had been moved in or produced for commerce. 

34. Defendant "suffered or pennitted" Plaintiffs to work and thus "employed" them 

within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 203(g) of the FLSA. 

35. Plaintiffs' typical shifts lasted anywhere from eight (8) to nine (9) hours on a 

daily basis. They worked five (5) shifts per week and worked, on average, approximately 

forty-two ( 42) hours or more per week. 

36. Defendant's policy was and ts to rely solely on tips to compensate tipped 

employees. 

37. Plaintiffs rarely, if ever, received any paid wages from Defendant. 

5 
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38. In most, if not all, days, Plaintiffs' sole source of pay while working for 

Defendant was the tips that the customers provided. 

39. Under applicable law, in certain circumstances, it is permissible for an employer 

to take a tip credit and pay its employees less than minimum wage, provided that the employee's 

tips received from customers plus the tip credit paid by the employer equals at least the 

applicable minimum wage. 

40. An employer seeking to rely on tips to supplement an employee's wages must 

comply with 29 U.S.C. § 203(m), which provides that the maximum tip credit that an employer 

can claim under the FLSA is $5.12 per hour (the minimum wage of $7.25 minus the minimum 

required cash wage of $2 .13). 

41. In order to claim a tip credit, the employer must notify its employees of its 

intention to take the tip credit and must also infonn its employees that all tips received by the 

employee are to be retained by the employee. 

42. Moreover, an employer must explicitly notify the employee as to the amount of 

the tip credit and inforn1 the employee that the employee must still earn the mandated minimum 

of $7 .25 per hour between the amount of the tip credit taken by the employer and the amount of 

tips earned by the employee. 

43. An employer bears the burden of showing that it has satisfied the notification 

requirement of infonning its employees that tips are being credited against the employee's 

hourly wage. If an employer cannot demonstrate its compliance with this notification 

requirement, no credit can be taken and the employer is liable for the full minimum wage. 

44. Here, Defendant failed to inform the tipped employees of the "tip credit" 

requirements under the provisions of 29 U.S.C. § 203(m) and Pa. Stat. Ann. tit. 43, § 333 .103( d). 

6 
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45. Because Defendant failed to comply with 29 U.S.C. § 203(m), its compensation 

scheme denied Plaintiffs the minimum wages they were entitled to under the FLSA. 

46. The Third Circuit and district courts across the country have held that where an 

employer fails to satisfy any one of the notification requirements, that employer forfeits the tip 

credit and must pay the employee the full minimum wage. 

47. The DOL interprets the statute the same way and issued Fact Sheet #15 to provide 

general information concerning the application of the FLSA to employees who receive tips. 

48. Fact Sheet #15 provides an employer must provide the following information to a 

tipped employee before the employer may use the FLSA 3(m) tip credit such as the: 

a. amount of cash wage the employer is paying the tipped employee, which must 
be at least $2.13 per hour; 

b. additional amount claimed by the employer as a tip credit, which 
cannot exceed $5.12 (the difference between the minimum required 
cash wage of$2.13 and the current minimum wage of$7.25); 

c. that the tip credit claimed by the employer cannot exceed the amount 
of tips actually received by the tipped employee; and 

d. that the tip credit will not apply to any tipped employee unless the 
employee has been informed of these tip credit provisions. 

49. Defendant did not notify Plaintiffs of Defendant's intention of using the tip credit 

method of paying wages under the FLSA to pay Plaintiffs. 

50. Defendant's unlawful scheme also resulted in violations of the FLSA and PMWA 

overtime provisions. 

51. Plaintiffs frequently worked over forty ( 40) hours per week and were not 

compensated for any overtime hours worked calculated at time-and-a-half (1.5) of their regular 

rates of pay for each hour worked. 

52. Defendant knew that Tipped Employees worked over forty (40) hours per week 

7 
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without receiving time-and-a-half of their regular rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 

forty ( 40) in a workweek. 

53. Defendant was aware of its obligation to pay at least the federal and state 

minimum wage tip credit to their tipped employees including Plaintiffs. 

54. Defendant failed to take reasonable steps to detennine whether its pay practices 

were compliant with the FLSA. 

55. Defendant did not record the time Plaintiffs worked. 

56. Plaintiffs regularly performed work outside of their regularly scheduled hours. 

57. Defendant failed to keep accurate records of the hours worked each day and each 

workweek by Plaintiffs as required under Pennsylvania law. 34 Pa. Code§ 231.34. 

58. Defendant failed to maintain and preserve payroll records for Plaintiffs containing 

information required by 29 C.F.R. § 516.2(a). 

59. Although not required, a good faith demand letter pursuant to Rule 408 was sent 

to Defendant on September 14, 2017 which stated their violations of the FLSA and PMWA 

minimum wage and overtime compensation laws. 

60. Defendant's wrongful acts and/or omissions/commissions, as alleged herein, were 

not made in good faith, or in conformity with or in reliance on any written administrative 

regulation, order, ruling, approval, or interpretation by the U.S. Department of Labor and/or any 

state department of labor, or any administrative practice or enforcement policy of such 

departments. 

61. Defendant knowingly, willfully, and/or with reckless disregard carried out its 

illegal pattern or practice regarding its failure to pay Plaintiffs rarely, if ever, any minimum wage 

and overtime compensation. As set forth below, other prior and current tipped employees were 

8 
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subjected to the same wrongful policies, practices, and/or procedures. 

FLSA COLLECTIVE ALLEGATIONS 

62. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate all previous paragraphs herein. 

63. Plaintiffs bring this action pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) of the FLSA on behalf 

of all similarly situated current and former tipped employees of Defendant who rarely, if ever, 

were paid minimum wage and overtime compensation as a result of Defendant's failure to 

comply with the tip credit provisions as stated in 29 U.S.C. § 203(m). 

64. An "opt-in" collective action, under 29 U.S.C. § 216(b), is warranted by the 

Defendant's common policies or practices of: 

a. Failing to satisfy the notice requirements of informing their tipped 
employees of the tip credit provisions; and 

b. Failing to pay tipped employees the mandated minimum wage and 
overtime compensation as required by the FLSA. 

65. A collective action under the FLSA is appropriate because, under 29 U.S.C. § 

216(b ), all of Defendant's tipped employees are "similarly situated" to the named Plaintiffs. 

66. Plaintiffs assert the foregoing violations not only individually, but collectively 

pursuant to 29 U.S.C. 216(b) on behalf of the "FLSA Collective," defined as: 

Any tipped employee at SH Restaurant, Inc., d/bla "Cedar Park 
Cafe" at any time between three (3) years preceding the filing of 
this Complaint and present. 

67. The members of the FLSA Collective are similarly situated to the named 

Plaintiffs because they worked in the same or similar positions and were subjected to the same 

unlawful practices, policies, or plans and their claims are based upon the same factual and legal 

theories. 

68. The working relationships between Defendant and every member of the FLSA 
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Collective are the same and differ only in name. The key legal issue in the collective action-

whether Defendant's pay policy and tip credit practice violates the FLSA-does not vary 

substantially from one collective member to another collective member. 

69. The precise number and identities of Collective members should be readily 

available from a review of Defendant's personnel and payroll records. 

70. Defendant is aware that the FLSA applies to their business and they are required 

to adhere to the rules under the FLSA. 

71. Defendant's conduct and practices, described herein, were and are willful, 

intentional, unreasonably, arbitrary, and in bad faith. 

COUNT I 
(29 U.S.C. § 216(b) Individual Claims) 

Violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq. 
FAILURE TO PAY MINIMUM WAGE AND OVERTIME 

72. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate all previous paragraphs herein. 

73. 29 U.S.C. § 206(a) provides: 

Every employer shall pay to each of his employees who in any 
workweek is engaged in commerce or in the production of goods 
for commerce, or is employed in an enterprise engaged in 
commerce or in the production of goods for commerce, wages at ... 
not less than ... $7.25 an hour. ... 

74. 29 U.S.C. § 207(a)(l) provides: 

[N]o employer shall employ any of his employees who in any 
workweek is engaged in commerce or in the production of goods 
for commerce, or is employed in an enterprise engaged in 
commerce or in the production of goods for commerce, for a 
workweek longer than forty hours unless such employee receives 
compensation for his employment in excess of the hours above 
specified at a rate not less than one and one-half times the regular 
rate at which he is employed. 

75. Plaintiffs were not exempt from the protections of the FLSA. 
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76. Pursuant to Defendant's pay policies, rather than pay Plaintiffs the federally 

· mandated minimum wage and overtime compensation under the tip credit provisions, Defendant 

instead relied mostly, if not entirely on customers' discretionary tips to compensate Plaintiffs. 

77. As a result of Defendant's policy of failing to pay Plaintiffs the federally 

mandated minimum wage, there were many weeks in which Plaintiffs did not receive an amount 

of pay from Defendant's that averaged out to at least $7.25 per hour. 

78. As a result of Defendant's policy of failing to pay Plaintiffs the federally 

mandated overtime compensation, there were many weeks in which Plaintiffs did not receive an 

amount of pay of time-and-a-half (1.5) of each employee's regularly hourly wage. 

79. As a result of Defendant's practices, Defendant is not entitled to claim the tip 

credit pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 203(m) and must pay Plaintiffs all wages owed under the federal 

minimum wage and overtime compensation. 

80. Defendant's failure to pay Plaintiffs minimum wage and overtime compensation 

was knowing and willful. Defendant knew that its policies resulted in Plaintiffs not being paid 

for time spent working and Defendant could have properly compensated Plaintiffs for such work, 

but did not. See 29 U.S.C. § 255(a). 

81. Defendant's failure to pay Plaintiffs minimum wage and overtime compensation 

was not done in good faith, or in conformity with or in reliance on any written administrative 

regulation, order, ruling, approval, or interpretation by the U.S. Department of Labor and/or any 

state department of labor, or any administrative practice or enforcement policy of such 

departments. 

82. As a result of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were illegally denied proper minimum 

wages and overtime compensation earned, in such amounts to be determined at trial, and are 
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entitled to recovery of total unpaid amounts, liquidated damages, reasonable attorneys' fees and 

costs and other compensation pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). 

COUNT II 
(29 U.S.C. § 216(b) Collective Action) -

Violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq. 
FAILURE TO PAY MINIMUM WAGE AND OVERTIME 

83. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate all previous paragraphs herein. 

84. Defendant's Tipped Employees were not exempt from the protections of the 

FLSA. 

85. Pursuant to Defendant's compensation policies, rather than pay their tipped 

employees the federally mandated minimum wage and overtime compensation under the tip 

credit provisions, Defendant instead relied mostly, if not entirely, on customers' discretionary 

tips to compensate Plaintiffs. 

86. As a result of Defendant's willful practices, Defendant is not entitled to claim the 

tip credit pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 203(m) and must pay all Tipped Employees wages under the 

federal minimum wage and overtime compensation standard. 

87. Defendant's failure to pay their Tipped Employees were knowing, willful, 

intentional, unreasonably, arbitrary, and in bad faith. Defendant knew that its policies resulted in 

their Tipped Employees, including Plaintiffs, not being paid for time spent working and 

Defendant could have properly compensated their Tipped Employees, including Plaintiffs, for 

such work, but did not. See 29 U.S.C. § 255(a). 

88. As a result of the foregoing, Defendant's Tipped Employees were illegally denied 

proper minimum wages and overtime compensation earned, in such amounts to be determined at 

trial, and are entitled to recovery of total unpaid amounts, liquidated damages, costs, reasonable 

attorneys' fees and other compensation pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). 
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COUNT III 
(PMWA, 43 Pa. Stat. Ann. § 333.10, Individual Claims) 

FAILURE TO PAY MINIMUM WAGE AND OVERTIME 

89. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate all previous paragraphs herein. 

90. Defendant employed Plaintiffs within the meaning of the PMWA. 

91. Defendant required Plaintiffs to regularly work over forty (40) hours a week and 

Plaintiffs rarely, if ever, received any paid wages from Defendant. 

92. Defendant failed to follow the tip credit provisions in violation of the PMW A. 

93. As a result, Defendant is mandated to pay Plaintiffs the minimum wage and 

overtime compensation pursuant to PMW A. 

94. Defendant's conduct and practices, described herein, were/are willful, intentional, 

unreasonable, arbitrary and in bad faith. 

95. As a result of the foregoing, Plaintiffs were illegally denied proper minimum 

wages and overtime compensation earned, in such amounts to be determined at trial, and are 

entitled to recovery of total unpaid amounts, liquidated damages, reasonable attorneys' fees and 

cost and other compensation pursuant to PMW A. 

RELIEF REQUESTED 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Tiara Scotland and Janaya Outerbridge, individually and on 

behalf of all other similarly situated tipped employees, respectfully requests that this Court grant 

the following relief: 

a. Certifying this case as a collective action in accordance with 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) 
with respect to the FLSA claims set forth herein Count I and Count II; 

b. Ordering Defendant to disclose in computer format, or in print if no computer 
readable format is available, the names and addresses of all FLSA Collective 
members, and permitting Plaintiffs to send notice of this action to all those similarly 
situated individuals, including the publishing of notice in a manner that is reasonably 
calculated to apprise the collective class members of their rights by law to join and 
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participate in this lawsuit; 

c. Designating Plaintiffs as the representatives of the FLSA Collective and 
undersigned counsel as counsel for the same; 

d. An order directing Defendant, at its expense, to investigate and account for the 
number of hours worked by Plaintiffs and all other Tipped Employees who opt-in to 
this action; 

e. Granting judgment in favor of Plaintiff and against Defendant and awarding 
Plaintiff and the FLSA Collective the full amount for all unpaid minimum wage and 
overtime compensation under the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq., PMWA, 43 P.S. § 
333.101, et seq., and attendant regulations at 29 C.F.R. §§ 516, et seq.; 

f. A declaratory judgment that Defendant's wage practices alleged herein violate the 
FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq., PMWA, 43 P.S. § 333.101, et seq., and attendant 
regulations at 29 C.F.R. §§ 516, et seq.; 

g. An incentive award for Plaintiffs for serving as a representative of other Tipped 
Employees pursuant to the FLSA; 

h. Awarding reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred by Plaintiffs in this action 
as provided by statute; and 

i. Awarding such other and further relief as this Court deems appropriate. 

JURY DEMAND 

Plaintiffs, Tiara Scotland and Janaya Outerbridge, individually and on behalf of all other 

Tipped Employees, by and through their attorneys, hereby demands a trial by jury pursuant to 

Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and the court rules and statutes made and 

provided with respect to the above entitled claims. 

Dated: December 8, 2017 By: 
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TB LAW GROUP, LLC 
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Jersey City, NJ 07302 
T: (877) 561-0000 
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Counsel for Plaintiff 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

TIARA SCOTLAND and JANAY A 
OUTERBRIDGE, individually, and on behalf 
of others similarly situated, 

Plaintiffs, 
vs. 

SH RESTAURANT, INC., d/bla 
"CEDAR PARK CAFE," 

Defendant. 

Case No. 

CONSENT TO SUE 

I, Tiara Scotland, hereby consent to be a Plaintiff in the case captioned above. I hereby 
consent to the bringing of any claims I may have under the Fair Labor Standards Act and 
Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act (for unpaid minimum wages, overtime wages, liquidated 
damages, attorneys' fees and costs and other relief) and any other applicable wage and hour law 
against the Defendant. I further consent to bringing these claims on a collective action basis with 
other current/fonner employees of Defendant, to be represented by JTB Law Group, LLC. I 
agreed to be bound by any settlement of this action or adjudication by the Court. I authorize JTB 
Law Group, LLC, as well as its successors and assigns, to represent me in this case. 

Signed: ____ ___._, _J_~ __ J_~------- Dated: 12/07/2017 

Name: 

Address: 
Street 

City, State, Zip Code 

Doc ID: 063ec3e07c47263a9f8aa8d72b5d68fe92af238d 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

TIARA SCOTLAND and JANAYA 
OUTERBRIDGE, individually, and on behalf 
of others similarly situated, 

Plaintiffs, 
vs. 

SH RESTAURANT, INC., dlbla 
"CEDAR p ARK CAFE," 

Defendant. 

Case No. 

CONSENT TO SUE 

I, Janaya Outerbridge, hereby consent to be a Plaintiff in the case captioned above. I 
hereby consent to the bringing of any claims I may have under the Fair Labor Standards Act and 
Pennsylvania Minimum Wage Act (for unpaid minimum wages, overtime wages, liquidated 
damages, attorneys' fees and costs and other relief) and any other applicable wage and hour law 
against the Defendant. I further consent to bringing these claims on a collective action basis with 
other current/former employees of Defendant, to be represented by JIB Law Group, LLC. I 
agreed to be bound by any settlement of this action or adjudication by the Court. I authorize JTB 
Law Group, LLC, as well as its successors and assigns, to represent me in this case. 

Signed: -------~~;.....t-'-------- Dated: 12/07/2017 

Name: 

Address: 
Street 

City, State, Zip Code 

Doc ID: 5df1 a318c9ebf0951e6040c7b997cf79fff42a14 
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